

O-22-41
11/9/22

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING THE REVISED GENERAL ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BAYONNE, CHAPTER 7, TRAFFIC

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Municipal Council of the City of Bayonne, as follows:

SECTION 1: The Revised General Ordinances of the City of Bayonne, Chapter 7, Traffic is hereby amended and supplemented by amending and supplementing subsections 7-11, 7-13.3, 7-17.3 and 7-38.2 as follows (additions ****between asterisks and/or in bold****, deletions {within brackets and/or ~~struck through~~):

§ 7-11. TEMPORARY PARKING PROHIBITION FOR SNOW PLOWING AND REMOVAL, SPECIAL EVENTS, EMERGENCIES AND/OR CONSTRUCTION RELATED ACTIVITIES; PARKING METER BAGS. [1972 Code § 10-3.2; Schedule I; Ord. No. O-12-07 § 2; Ord. No. O-17-40]

e. Whenever it becomes necessary for representatives of {~~the New Jersey Bell Telephone Company~~} ****Verizon****, Public Service Electric and Gas Company, any service, repair or construction contractor or individuals having temporary specific need to use a parking metered space, ****or zoned residential space****, for a vehicle, dumpster or storage for longer than the allotted time prescribed by this article, then parking meter bags, ****or no-parking signs****, may be issued upon approval of a Metered Parking Space Agreement by the Bayonne Parking Utility, ****or the Bayonne Police Department****. {~~A deposit of \$25 will be required for each bag and the user will be required to employ a secure lock when bags are placed over meters.~~}

f. The fee for the use of parking meter bags shall be \$10 per twenty-four-hour period ****for a single head meter, and \$20 per twenty-four-hour period for a double-headed meter**** {~~or part thereof~~}. The fee shall be charged until the time of the return of the parking meter bags. ~~Failure to return bags promptly shall also result in the forfeiture of the deposit.~~ ****The fee for a no-parking sign shall be \$25 per day****.

§ 7-13.3. Time Limit Metered Parking. [1972 Code §§ 10-11.2, 10-11.3; Resolution of the Parking Authority January 9, 2001; February 13, 2001; Ord. No. O-01-50; Ord. No. O-14-10; Ord. No. O-14-36; Ord. No. O-17-15; Ord. No. O-17-15; Ord. No. O-18-61]

c. Fees. When any vehicle shall be parked in any space adjacent to which a parking meter is located in accordance with the provisions of this section, the operator of the vehicle shall, upon entering the parking space, immediately deposit or cause to be deposited, one or more ~~\$0.10 or~~ \$0.25 coins of the United States in the parking meter. Failure to deposit the appropriate coin or coins to put the meter in operation shall constitute a violation of this subsection.

The fees shall be as follows:

(a) Public street. ~~{ \$0.10 for each 10 minutes }~~ ****\$0.25 for each 15 minutes**** with increments at the rate of ~~{ \$0.10 per 10 minutes }~~ ****\$0.25 per 15 minutes****. No vehicle shall park at a meter on a public street for more than two hours during the time limits stated in paragraph b above.

~~{(b) A courtesy coin slot of \$0.25 for a half hour will be installed in all meters for on-street parking.}~~

§ 7-17.3. Issuance of Permits and Placement of Signs. [Ord. No. O-00-46 § 10-23.2; Ord. No. O-14-10; Ord. No. O-14-36]

f. The Mayor or his designee shall determine by regulation the provisions for the issuance of temporary permits and fees, if any, as follows:

1. For vehicles used in providing services to persons or property in the residential permit zone;
2. For vehicles owned by temporary visitors who are residing in the residential permit parking area. A temporary visitor is any person who does not reside in but physically remains in a residence located within a residential permit parking area for a period in excess of one day. Such temporary residential parking permits shall

have all of the rights and privileges of a regular permit; however, a temporary parking permit shall be valid for no more than ~~{30}~~ ****21**** days from the date of issuance;

3. For bona fide visitors to residences within designated residential permit parking areas, including but not limited to a ~~{disposable (one-time use only) hang tag program that would allow bonafide residents the opportunity to purchase scratch-off (disposable) hang tags for daily use}~~ ****virtual parking permit****. A bona fide visitor is any person who visits a residence located within a residential permit parking area for a period of time that does not exceed one day; and

i. Permit fees ~~{,if any,}~~ shall be:

****1. \$5.00 per residential parking permit. A senior discount of 2 free passes will be available to any resident 62 years or older.**

2. \$5.00 per temporary visitor parking permit which is valid for 21 days.

3. \$200 per non-resident parking permit which is valid for one year.**

****Fees are**** calculated and imposed by regulation based on the actual cost of manufacture and installation of pertinent signs, applications, permits and administrative costs in connection with the issuance of permits and the administration and enforcement of the residential permit parking program created pursuant to this chapter.

j. The permit shall be ~~{displayed on the lower left corner of the rear driver's side window or other location to be specified by regulation}~~ ****virtual in the Parking Utility's database****.

§ 7-38.2. Time-Limited Metered Parking Lots. [1972 Code § 10-11; Ord. No. O-14-10; Ord. No. O-14-36; Ord. No. O-16-64]

c. Fees. When any vehicle shall be parked in any space adjacent to which a parking meter is located in accordance with the provisions of this section, the operator of the vehicle shall, upon entering the parking space, immediately deposit or cause to be deposited, one or more ~~\$0.10 or~~ \$0.25 coins of the United States in the parking meter. Failure to deposit the appropriate coin or coins to put the meter in operation shall constitute a violation of this subsection.

1. The fees shall be as follows: Public Off-Street Parking Lots. \$0.50 for each ~~{hour}~~ ****30 minutes****. There shall be a ten-hour limit where meters have been changed in the following lots:

d. Permit Parking. The Parking Utility or its designee may issue monthly parking lot permits not to exceed 40% of the total number of parking spaces in the lots under its jurisdiction except that there shall be no permit spaces in the two lots located on East 26th Street north and south sides between Broadway and Avenue E.

1. A fee of ~~{\$75}~~ ****\$150**** per month for a daily permit fee, and ~~{\$35}~~ ****\$70**** per month for a night lot permit shall be payable to the Parking Utility in advance, and shall be evidenced by a ~~{hang tag which must be hung from the inside rearview mirror so as to be clearly visible from the exterior of the vehicle at all times when the vehicle is parked in a permit parking space}~~ ****virtual parking permit****.